Clarifications to Vendor Inquiries

The following are inquiries that have come forth pursuant to SIR DTFA01-99-R-0000:

1. Can the Protégé be the prime contractor?  The Mentor-Protégé Pilot Program Guide Revision 7 states that “ Protégés may participate in the program in pursuit of a prime contract… ”  We assume that this allows a protégé to propose as a prime contractor on this solicitation with its mentor serving as a subcontractor?

A Protégé can be the prime contractor.

2. We are considering applying for a role as a Mentor on the Mentor-Protégé Program.  With the approval process taking up to 60 days, however, we are concerned that the FAA will not complete the processing of our application until after the selection process for the RFO is completed.  How will this affect the consideration of our proposal? 

The FAA will consider all proposals and expedite review of all Mentor-Protégé applications submitted in accordance with the SIR requirements.

3. What criteria are used to evaluate a proposed mentor-protégé relationship?  Given the indirect costs that a proposed mentor would absorb under such a relationship, has the FAA set any guidelines for mentor contributions?

All proposed mentor-protégé agreements will be evaluated in accordance with the Mentor-Protégé Pilot Program Guide (Revision 7) dated July 23, 1999 Section 1.10(a).

4. Section C.4. Mentor-Protégé Agreement states that the “Contractor shall allocate 2453 hours per year to the Protégé”.   Is this a minimum requirement?  Can additional hours be allocated?

Yes.  Yes.

5. Section L.8.1.5 specifies that offerors supply a list of proposed subcontractors.  Under the Mentor-Protégé set-aside contract, can a team consist of other than those in a Mentor-Protégé Agreement?  Can the team include subcontractors who have no mentor-protégé relationship?

A team can consist of other than those in a Mentor-Protégé Agreement  (including subcontractors who have no mentor-protégé relationship).

6. Section B.1 contains Labor Categories.  Will the FAA provide Position Descriptions outlining the required skills for these categories?

No.  The implication is that a basic knowledge of the support requirements of the SOW naturally focuses on functions and skill levels.

7. Section L.7.3.2 (5)(a), references Key Personnel without designating the labor categories or personnel who comprise the list of Key Personnel in the solicitation.

Section B.1 is the list of Key Personnel.

8. Section L.7.2, Proposal Organization, limits Volume II, Technical Proposal to 10 pages and indicates that the volume contains five sections (A-E).  The SIR, however, does not provide instructions for Sections D and E; nor does it offer guidance to the distribution of pages between them. Please describe the contents of these two sections and specify the number of pages allocated to each.

The technical proposal is limited to 10 pages.  The contents of Part D can be found in L.8.1.4.  The contents of Part E can be found in L.8.1.5.

9. Section M.1, Evaluation and Award, refers to Sections M.1.1 and M.1.2 as forming the basis for the evaluation.  Where are these two sections?

The correct reference should be M.2 and M.3.

10. Section M.3, Rating Factors, while indicating a general relationship between two groups of criteria (Factors1, 2, and 5 versus Factors 4, 6, and 8), does not explain the weights attributed to any of the factors listed in this section.  Can you provide a more specific measure of the relative importance of these factors?

It would be inappropriate to disclose this information at this time.

11. Section M.4, Numerical Rating Scale, provides criteria that a bidder must meet to earn a “satisfactory”, “good” or “outstanding” rating.  Can the FAA attach specific scores or points to these criteria to indicate how each contributes to the rating?

It would be inappropriate to disclose this information at this time.

12. Section M.4 denotes a cost criterion (“d”) for achieving an outstanding rating.  The rating relates to a specified support team composition.  The composition of the team does not seem to match the labor categories identified in Section B.  It also does not correspond to the focus of the statement of work or the Evaluation Factors listed throughout Section M.  Please resolve the apparent disparity. 

The cost criterion (“d”) is intended as a discriminator for excellence above other routine requirements for Statement of Work (SOW) performance.  The labor category titles in Section B are generalized categories of work talent and/or experience.  The grading criteria in Section M for the outstanding ratings (“d”) relates to specific functions or talents within a certain category.  The Scope of the SOW is mirrored in the rating item “d” which is consistent with team composition.

13. For pricing purposes, are only positions shown as full time level of effort (LOE 1920 hours) positions to be priced or should less than full time positions be priced also?  If the less than full time positions are to be included in the pricing, will the FAA provide the estimated hours to be used so that all offerors are using the same LOE base?

All of the positions needed to successfully meet the requirement are listed in Section B.  However, if the contractor determines that additional positions are needed in a specific area or they need further assistance from other resources then the contractor may request the usage of consultants.  This provision is provided in Section B, also. 

14. There is no Program Manager labor Category identified with an associated LOE.  Is it the FAA intent that an overall Program Manager is not required or it is not a direct charge to the contract?  

Program Management is outside the charge of the contract.  The Manger/System Engineer is intended to provide contractor support management of the level of effort outcomes.

15. Is it FAA’s intent that the System Engineer also performs as a Manager?  If so please clarify as to the level of management authority required and the LOE anticipated as Manager and as a System Engineer.  

The manager/System Engineer is intended as a single function to manage both the system architecture and operation as well as work assignments and productivity of the other labor categories/work functions involved in the performance of this contract.

16. Please clarify the Labor Category of System Administrator/Senior Project Manager and associated LOE?  Is it the FAA’s intent that the System Administrator perform as a Senior Project Manager?  Clarify the level of management authority required and the LOE anticipated as Senior Project Manager and as System Administrator.

As in the case of the Manager/System Engineer, the dual designation for the System Administrator/Senior Project Manager provides flexibility in staffing our needs.  A person to fill this role would compliment/supplement the System Administrator/Senior Programmer with emphasis of the secondary function being project management rather than programming.  The levels of effort are intended to show the minimum and maximum expected levels of effort available under this contract.

17. If the Protégé is the Prime does C.4 apply?

Mentors and proteges can perform as prime contractors or subcontractors.  The specified hours assigned to the mentor-protégé relationship can be increased during contract performance if deemed appropriate by the FAA.  The 2453 hours per year apply to the subcontractor  (mentor or protégé firm).

18. The requirement for audited financial statements from SBA-certified 8(a) firms.

Since the enactment of the FAA’s Acquisition Management System (AMS), the Agency is exempt from the regulations pertaining to the Small Business Administration (SBA) 8(a) Program.  In order to determine financial stability, the FAA may require contractors to submit audited financial statements.  If the contractor chooses not to submit audited financial statements, then the contractor shall make available all financial documentation to support their financial position.  This documentation shall be reviewed by internal financial analysts.

19. L.9.1.2 Second paragraph – Can the performance of the three contracts be accomplished by either the Mentor or the Protégé company?  And, assuming that all three contracts were (or are being) performed by the Mentor, it is not clear how the Protégé’s anticipated performance will be evaluated? 
The performance of the three contracts can be accomplished by either the Mentor or the Protégé company.  The Protégé’s performance will be evaluated in accordance with the Mentor-Protégé Agreement.

20. Do you require one labor rate per labor category in Section B or do we list the rates of subcontractors separately?

List the rates of subcontractors separately.

21. Are the SIC codes any one of which the protégé must satisfy?

The Mentor or Protégé must satisfy any of the listed SIC codes.

22. Can an 8(a) company bid as prime if they satisfy one of these codes without being a mentor?

Yes.

23. Is the oral presentation due in slide form on August 30?  Does that constitute the technical proposal asked for in the SIR?

No.  Yes.

24. If the Offeror (prime) is an 8(a) contractor and meets the requirements of the SIC Codes, is the offereor required to partake in the Mentor/Protégé program identified in the SIR?

Yes.

25. Is DTFA01-99-R-0000 the official SIR Number? 

Yes.

26. Will the SF-33 be released later?

Offerors shall submit a SF-33 with their proposal.

27. Will the Wage Determination be used at the discretion of the offeror?

The SIR will be amended to incorporate the Service Contract Act.

28. Is there a breakdown on which labor category will be located at contractor premises or government laboratory?  For costing purposes which price would you like for Sections B.1, On Government Site or Off Government Site? 

A cross section of the labor categories will be located at either the contractor premises or government laboratory.  Both

29. Is there a limit on how many contracts can be covered in the Technical Presentation?  Is there a page limit on how many slides can be submitted as a part of the presentation package?

No.  No.

30. L.5—Internet and Fax Number.

Internet address:  vida.tarpley_lee@faa.gov
Fax Number      :  (202) 267-5142

Thank you for your interest in this FAA procurement.  Any further questions regarding this procurement should be submitted to Vida Tarpley , at the above e-mail address in Question No. 30, by 10AM on August 17, 1999 to ensure timely posting on the internet.

William Spear

Contracting Officer

